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07 Civ. 919 (KMK)

- AMENDED

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™), for its

Amended Complaint against Defendants Aragon Capital Management, LLC (“Aragon

Capital”), Aragon Partners, LP (“Aragon Partners™), Zvi Rosenthal (“Zvi™), Amir

Rosenthal (“Ainir”), Ayal Rosenthal (“Ayal”), Oren Rosenthal (“Oren”), Noga Delshad

(“Noga”), David Heyman (“Heyman”), Heyman & Son Investment Partnership, LP

—~
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(“Heyman & Son”), Young Kim (“Kim”), and Bahram Delshad (“Bahram™) (collectively,
the “Defendants™), and against Efrat Rosenthal (“Efrat”) and Rivka Rosenthal (“Rivka”)
(collectively, the “Relief Defendants™), alleges as follows:

SUMMARY .

1. This case involves a brazen scheme of serial insider trading orchestrated
by ‘a father and his sons which netted them, their friends, and other relatives at least $4
million.r From at least 2001 through November 2005 (the “Relevant Period”), the father,
Zvi, a former _senior manager at Taro Pharmaceutical Industries, Ltd; (“Taro”),
systematically stole, on at least 13 occasions, material, nonpublic information from Taro,
traded on it in some instances, and provided it, directly or indirectly, to his sons: Amir, an
attorney formerly associated with a large law firm, headquartered in New York; Ayal, an
aceountant formerly associated with PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”); and Oren, an
attomey-formerly associated with a large law firm, headquartered in Los Angeles, each of
whom traded on the information.  The scheme grew to include other relatives and friends,
with Amir passing along tips about Taro to his wife, Noga; his father-in-law, Bahram; his
friend Heyman, who was employed by Emst & Young (“E&Y”); and Kim, Amir’s
supervisoi at his law firm. Appendix A, attached hereto, illilst'rates the ﬂoW of inside
information among the Defendants.

2. In addition to buying. and selling Taro stock, the Defendants used the
stolen nonpublic material information to purchase or sell sophisticated options contracts
that were designed to capitalize on stock price movements, but which would escape
detection more easily than purchasing or selling stock. Through strategic but frequent

options trading, the Defendants garnered significant gains or avoided significant losses.
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3. As the scheme progressed, Amir and Noga created a vehicle through ’
which Amir’s family could trade on Taro’s nonpublic information without detection. In
2003, Amir and Noga created a hedge fund, Aragon Partners, and its investment adviser,
Aragon Capital, to pool money from Rosenthal family members to trade in Taro
securities. Through Arégon Partnefs, the Rosenthal Defendants were‘ able to obscure
their identities, fuﬁher distancing themsélves from Zvi, the source of their inside
information at Taro. | At Amir’s request, Noga, his fiancée at the ‘time, setup a 'brokefage
account in which he or she could trade. Trading in Nogéi’s account served to .avoid
association of the trading with Zvi. At various times Amir tipped Noga with material
nonpublic information he reéeivcd from Zvi, and Noga traded Taro securities or agreed
that Amir would trad¢ Taro securities in- her account. | |

4. In its latef stages, certain of the Defendants l;roadened the scheme to
include trading on nonpublif: infqmlation 'stolen from entities other than Taro. On at leést

two occasions, Ayal and Heyman ﬁﬁsappropriated material, nonpublic information
concerning impending mergers (that ultimately never materiali‘zed) frbm their respective
" employers, PwC aﬁd .E&Y, and tipped Amir with the information. Amir tﬁen traded on
the iﬁfoﬁhation. Amir also tipped Kim with the information from Ayal and Heyman, and
.Kim traded on the information. | |
5. By this action, ther Commission seeks, among other things, an order
- providing for: i)ennaneht injunctive relief against all of the Defendants, the disgérgement
of all profits and losses avoided from the unlawful insider trading activity set forth
herein,‘plus prej udgfnent inte.rest, and civil monetary penalties; and disgorgement of all -
ill-gotten gains and losses avoided by every Relief Defendant as a resulf of thé insider

trading activity set forth herein.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE
6. The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred

upon it by Section 20(b) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act™), 15 US.C. §
77t(b), and Section 21(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Acf”), 15
U.S.C. § 78u(d), for permanent injunctive relief against the Defendants, from engaging in
the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business alleged in this Cotnplaint_ and for
.civil penalties pursuant to Section 21(d) of the Exchapge Act, 15 U.S;C. § 78u(d)(3); The
Commission also brings thié action pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchanée Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78u-1, for civil penalties against the Defendants under the Insider Trading and
Securities Fraud Enforcement Act of 1988. In addition, the Commission seeks an order
barring Zvi from acting as an ofﬁcer:(")r director of any issuer that has a class of éecdrities
registered pursuént to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.. § 781, of that is |
required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, 15 U;S.C. §
780(d), pursuant to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, 15 US.C. § 78u(d)(2), and for
such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate.

7. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to Sections 20(b)_ and 22(a) of the
R Sécun'ties Act, 15U.S.C. §§ 77t(b), 77v(a), and Sections 21(d), 21A, and 27 of the
' -Exchange Act, 15US.C. §§ 78u(d), 787u-71, 78aa. Certain of the acfs, 'praétices, |
transactions and coﬁrses of business alleged herein occurred .within the Southérn District
~ of New York, and Amir, Ayal, Noga, Kim and Héyman lived and worked wi,thiﬁ this - |
District. Several of the communications between and among the Defendants were made
from or within this District and several of the trades were placed from the ofﬁées of

Amir, Kim, Ayal and Heyman within this District.
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8. Defendants, directiy or indirectly, have made use of the means or
instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or the facilities of a national
securities exchange in connection with the transactions, acts, practices and courses of
business alleged herein.

DEFEN DANTS

9. 'Zvi, age 62, residés in Tenafly, New Jersey. Zvi is married to Rivka and
is the father of Amir, Ayal, Oren, and Efrat. Zvi was émployed by Tafo frb_m 1994 to
February 2006. From 1994 to 1_997; Zvi worked at Taro Israel as Assistant to the Senior
Vice President and Chief Operating Ofﬁcer of Taro Israel, and supervised production at
Tafo Israel’s'Haifa, Israélplant. In 1997, he moved to Taro USA and began coordinating
all of Taro’s maﬁtifactun'ng worldwide as Taro’s Vice President of M’a.tterials‘
Mahagement and Logisticé‘. In 1998, the United States Aﬁo@ey’é Office for the Eastern
District of New York charged Zvi with making false claims to the United States
Department of Defeﬁsé in violation of _18 USC §267 in connectk\)n with Zvi’s work
(prior to joining Tafo) as Operations Manager at Isratex,llnc., a company that
manufactured military uniforms and clothjng under contract with the United States
military. On April 14, 2000, Zvi pleaded guilty to é single feloﬁy count of false claims in
violation of 18 U.S.C. §267. He was fined $20,000 and sentenced to three years; |
pvrobati'on, including six months of home confinement with .eléctroni:c.- monitoring,
although he was permitted to continue workiné at‘Taro. On February 8, 2007 the United
States Attorney for the Eastern District of New York‘ (“USAO-EDNY™) charged VZvi with
conspiracy to.commit sepurities fraud iﬁ \}iolation of 18 U.S.C; § 371 in connection wi_th
his providing material, non-public information to his son Amir, who traded on the

informati‘on and provided it to others, who also traded. On February 8, 2007, Zvi pled



Case 1:07-cv-00919-FM  Document4  Filed 03/22/2007 Page 6 of’53

guilty to felony conspiracy to commit securities fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371.
During the Relevant Period, Zvi engaged in certain of the transactions referenced herein
through his Ameritrade account an(i through accounts he maintained abroad, including
accounts at the Israeli Discount Bank in Israel.
10. Amir, age 29, rresides in New York, New York. Amir is Zvi’s middle
soﬁ. Amir graduatéd from New York Univers_ity School of Law in 2004, and - was
admitted to the New York Bar in 2006. Amir was the managing nﬁ_ember _bf Aragon
Capitz\Ll, the investment adviser to Aragon Partners, the Rosenthal fafnily hedge fund, and
~ traded for the benefit of himself and his family in the Aragon Paﬁners’ brokefage
account. In September 2004, Amir was hired as an associate in the Structured Finance
‘group at a large law firm headquartered in New Yorkl,. New York. During the Relevénf
Period, Amir made certain of the transactions referenced.herein through tWo accounts: (i)
his Custodial Account at Brown & Co., an account originally set up for him by his father,
Zvi, aﬁd (i1) his Ameritrade account. Amir, in agreement with Noéa, may aléo .have

~made certain of th¢ transactions referenced vherein through her Amex‘i_tfade account. On

Februaryv8, 2007 the US_AE)—EDNY chargcd Amir with conspiracy to coqﬁnit securities

' ﬁaud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 in connection with hié tr'ading While in possession
of material non-public information he received from Zvi and providing material, non-
public information to Othefs, including Heyrhan, who traded on the ianrmation. On
February 8, 2007 Amir pled guilty to felony conspiracy to commit securities fraud in

| violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371.

11. Ayal, age 26, resides in New York, Néw York. Aﬁtl ié Zvi’s youngest
son. Ayal graduated from Rutgers College with a bachelor’s degree in management in

2001, and began working as an Associate at PwC. In 2002, he received a Masters degree
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in accounting from the University of Texas (Austin) while working at PwC. Ayal is a
licensed Certified Public Accountant. In the spring of 2005, he moved from PwC’s Audit
- Services Group into the Transaction Services Group. As an employee of PwC, Ayal |
owed contractual, fiduciary and other duties of trust andvconﬁdence to PwC. Asa CPA,
~Ayal held a professional duty to maintain the confidentiality of his clients’ information.
Ayal resi gned from PWC on 'May 4, 2006. During the Relevant Period, Ayal made
certain of the trades referenced herem through Ayal’s Custodial Account at Brown &
Co,, and through his Ameritrade account On February 8§, 2007 the USAO-EDNY
charged Ayal with conspiracy to commit securities fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 B
in connection with his providing material, nonpublic inforrnation to Amir conceming_'a’
possible merger of two publicly traded companies thztt Ayal knew about as a result of his
work at PwC. On F ebr_uary 8, 2607 -A'yal-pled gui-lt)r to felony conspiracy to commit -
securities fraud in violation of 18 US.C. §371. | |
12. Oren, age 31, resides in Los Angeles, Califorrﬁa. Oren is Zvi’s eldest
son. Oren graduated_fror_n the University of Southern California Law V'School in 2003 and '
began wdrking as 5 litigation'as’sociate _With the New. York office of a large law firm
headquartered in Los Angetes, California. ‘He was adniitted'to the New Yorkr Bar in |
2604. In December 2005, Oren transferre'd-to the taw firm’s Los _Angeles ofﬁce, whe_re _
» he worked on general cornmercial litigation, white collar criminal defense, and inter-na_l».
investigations until he resigned in January 2007. He was admitted to the b:ir- of California
in June "2(l)06. During the ReleVant Pen'od, Oren made certai.n of the trades referenced'
: herein through hie Custodial Account at Brown & Co. and through his Ameritrade

account.
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13. Noga,‘ age 29, resides in New York, New York. Noga graduated from
Fordham Law School in 2002 and was admitted to the New York bar in 2004. Noga
worked as an associate in the Corporate and Securities Department of a large
international law firm from September 2002 to May 2005. Néga is currenﬂy an in-house
attorney for a large auction house. Amir and Noga married in August 2003. During the -
relevant period, certain trades referenced herein were made though a brokerage account
Noga ov_yned at Ameritrade. Prior to éach of those trades, Mir tipped Noga with
material, nonpublic information about Taro that he had obtained from Zvi. Théreaﬁér,
Noga either traded in Taro securities in her account or agreéd that Amir should do so.

14. H_e);man,-age-v29, resides _in New York, New York. Heyman graduated
from Rutgers College in 1999 and immediately began working af E&Y as an entry-level
auditor. .While working at E&Y, Heyman obtained a Masters in Accounting from the
University of Virginia, and became a licensed Certified Public Accountant in 2003; As
an émployée of E&Y:, Heyman owed contractual, fiduciary and other duties of trust and
confidence to E&Y. Asa CPA, Heyrﬁan held a professiona] duty to maintain the -_ |
conﬁde_nti‘ality_ of his cliénts’ in'fonnation‘ Heyman fesigrled'ﬁbm E&Y on January 27,

© 2006. At the time he léﬁ, Heyman was 'a Senior Manager in the On-Call .Cénsqlting
Group. During the Relevant Period, Heymaﬁ made certain of the transactions refe;renced
herein through h1s Ameritrade account, and through his Heyman & Son account
described below. On F ébruary 8, 2007 the USAO-EDNY charged Heyman with
conspiracy to commit securities fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 in connection with
his trading Taro securities while in possession of material non-public information that he
recetved from Amir; and in connection with his proVidi_ng material, nonpublic

information to Amir concerning a possible merger of two publicly traded comparﬁes that
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Heyman leamed as aresult of his work at E&Y. On February 8, 2007 Heyman pled
guilty to felony conspiracy to commit securities fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371.

15. Kim, age 34, resides in Union City, New Jersey. Kim graduated from
Cornell University School of Law in 1998 and, in 2000, began working at th¢ New York-
'b-ased' law ﬁrm where Amir later worked. He was admitted to the New York Bar in 2000.
In 2002, he transferred to the firm’s Structured Finﬁnce Groﬁp. From approximately
Sepfember 2004 until June 2006,_ Kim supe_rvised Amir. buﬁng the Rglevant Period,
Kim made ceﬁain of the fransactions referen;:ed herein tﬁrdugh his Ameritrade accoﬁnt. '
On Februéry 16, 2007, thé Court entered aVF inal Judgmeﬂt on Consent against Klm, in
which Kim was adjudged to have violated various provisioné of the securities laws,
enjoined ﬁoﬁ further Violati'dns and Ofdered to pay disgorgement and 'penalties“in ‘
. conﬁection with his violatibns. |

16. Bahram, age 56, fesidés in Englewood Cliffs,.New Iersey. Bahram, a
retired jewelry shop owner, is Noga’s father and Amir’s 'féther-in-léw.. During the |
Relevant Period, Bahram made certain of the trades through his Amélitfade brokefage
account. .

17. . Aragon Capltal is a Delaware limited hablhty company set up in 2003
'by Amir and Noga to act as the General Partner of, and investment adviser to, Aragon
Partners. |

18. - Aragon Partnérs is a.Delaware limited paitnership set ﬁp in 2003 by
Amir and Noga as a hedge fund, and the vehicle through which he placed illicit trades
using stolen Taro nonpublic information. 'Amir, Ofen, Ayal, Efrat and rRivk_a each are
limited partners in Aragon Partners and each has a 20% ownership stake. Aragon

Partners was funded by transfers from each of Zvi’s children’s Custodial Accounts, and
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by separate deposits from each of the limited partners. Amir made many of the illicit
trades described below through Aragon.Partnersf CyberTrader, Inc. account. In all of the
trades Amir executed in the Aragon Partners’ account, he acted as the managing member
of Aragon‘ Capital.

19. _Heyman & Son is a limited partnership and hedge fund formed by
Heyman in 2005 and funded with money from Heyman’s family. Heyman is the Generatl
| Partner anti his _father is the cnly limited partner. During the Relevant Period, Heyman

made certain of the trades referenced herein through Heyman & Son’s Ameritrade |
brokerage account. |
RELIEF DEFENDANTS |

©20. ' Efrat,*age 24, resides in Tel Aviv, Tsrael. 'She is Zvi and ijka’s
daughter and is a limited partner in Aragon Partners Efrat received a drstnbutlon of ill-
gotten gains from Aragon Partners in approx1mately May 2005. In addition, during the
-Rel_evant Period, Am1r made certain of the transactions referenced herein through Efrat’s‘
Custodial Account at Brown & Co |

21 Rivka, age 60, res1des n Tenaﬂy, New J ersey She i is Zv1 S w1fe the
| mother of Amir, Oren, Ayal and Efrat, and a limited partner in Aragon Partners She
recerved a d1str1butron of ill-gotten gains from Aragon Partners in approximately May .
2005.

RELEVANT ENTITY

22. | '_ Tarc is an Israeli corporation with itsvprineipal place of business in
' Yakum, Israel. Taro developjs,', manufactures, and markets generrc prescription and over-
the-counter pharmaceutical products, and active pharmaceutical ingredients, primarily in

the United States, Canada, and Israel. Taro earns most of its profits from sales in the

10
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United States market. Taro USA is a iJnited States-based, wholly owned subsidiary of
Taro operating in Hawthorne, New York. At all times during the Relevant Period, Taro’s
shares were registered under Section 12(g) of the Secuﬁtieé Exchange Act of 1934
and quoted on the Nasdaq National ‘Market under the symbol TARO. At all times during
the Relevant Period, Taro was a foreign private issuer and filed Forms 20-F annually;
| FACTS
- 23. Throughout thé Relevant Period, the Defendants stole material,
nonpublic information énd traded on it. The Defendants uséd information stolen from
Zvi’s employer, Taro; Ayal’s employer, PwC; and Heyman’s emplbyér, E&Y.
A. The Taro Insider Trading Scheme
Zvi’s Access to Information at Taro -

24. During the Relevant Period, Zvi was empioyed at Taro as Vice President
' rof Materials Management and Logistics. In that position, he was résponsible for the -
manufacture and distribuﬁo_n proéess of all of the products Taro sells, including raw
material procurement, inventory management, and production scheduling.- To coordinate
Taro’s production aﬁd distributiOI}, and ensure that Taro matéhed product demand wit,h. :
-production and in.ventofy levéls, Zvi ilad access to daily elcctroﬁic sales and order data
| for the US ﬁlarket (“Salés Reports”). -In 2001, he participated in daily sales data
. meetings (“Daily Meetings”).‘- Because Zvi had real-time access to Taro’s sales data, he
had early knowledge of the company’s eamihgs prospects. _.

- 25.  Zvi’s production and distn'butioh resi)onsibilities‘ aiso réquired that he be -

alerted to the progress of aﬁplications Taro had made to the U.S. Food & Drug
Administration (“FDA”) for approval of new products Taro wished to market. Zvi was a

member of Taro’s Product Launch Committee (“PLC”). The PLC met weekly to discuss

11
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the status of various FDA approval processes, and coordinated production of new
products in the FDA pipeline with Zvi, so that he could coordinate production.of' batches

for the FDA and ultimately ensure rapid initial distribution of the product on the day Taro
obtained FDA approval. Zvi also met regularly with Taro’e Director of Regulatory
Affairs, wh-o. Weuld provide Zvi with the company’s changing estimates of expected FDA
- approval for each pending dmg or product so that Zvi could be-gin drug production as
-approval neared.

26. Zvi’rsvpositiion gave him access to Taro’s most significant nonpu_biic |
infofrnation:_ financial information, including current sales and eanﬁngé projecfions,'_and
FDA approval of new products. Beginning in 2001, Zvi passed that information on to his
son's, and_he, they,; the_irrlfn'ends, and other relatines, traded on it.

Tafo;s Trading and 'Conf.identialityr.Policies

27. Thnonghout'the Relevant Period, Taro’s “Statement of Policy
Concerning Trading in Secuﬁties-df the Company” (the “Trading Policy”) prohibifed Zvi
or:.any rnenlber of hlS falnily from Atr‘ading in Tare securities during specific periods -
befofe and aﬂer publiceamingsialmonncements (the “Blackout Period”). Taro’s Trading |
Pohcy prohlblted directors, ofﬁcers and employees of Taro (and each of their husbands

| wives, parents and chlldren) from tradmg Taro secuntles at any time, wp_t durmg a

- ten-day window each quarter beginning the third business day after Taro pubhcly

: announced its q_uaﬁerly financial results, and ending the thirteenth business day following
the announcement. Virtually all of the Ro.senthal Defendants” trades prior to Taro’s”
eamings announcements violated Taro’s Trading Policy.

28. Throughout the Relevant Period, Taro’s Disclosure Policy stated that

“employees, officers and directors must not discuss confidential, nonpublic information

12
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In its Trading Policy, Taro similarly

_prohibited directors, officers and employees from “disclosing, or otherwise passing on to

anyone any information concerning [Taro] and its plans and prospects of which [the

directors, offices and employees became] aware through [their] work or otherwise.”

29.  From approximately May 2001 through November 2005, the Defendants

-engaged in a scheme to profit from trading Taro securities in advance of Taro

- announcements concerning five FDA approvals of new drugs or products and eight Taro

earnings announcements, yielding more than $4 million in illicit profits and avoided

losses:
‘Date Announcement ~ Total
a Profits/
Losses
Avoided
May 29, 2001 FDA Approval of CB Cream $121,335
| July 19, 2001 Eamnings Announcement $231,701
October 18, 2001 - Earnings Announcement $188,895
' November 26,2002 | FDA approval of Econazole Nitrate $33,231
.Cream 1%
February 20, 2003 Eamnings Announcement $36,477
April 16,2003 | Earnings Announcement $20,869
April 29, 2004 Eamings Announcement $5,410
| July 29, 2004 | Earnings Announcement $1,774,818
. August 20, 2004 . FDA Approval of Loratadine Syrup $94,029
March 2, 2005 FDA Approval for Miconazole Nltrate $340,574
o Vaginal Cream, 4%
Apnl 14, 2005 | FDA Approval for Ciclopirox Olamine $292,983
SR Cream . - ‘
April 26, 2005 Eamings Announcement $132,484
November 17, 2005 Eamjngs Announcemerit $750,922
Total Trading Profits and Losses $4,023,728

Avoided
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30.  Three detailed examples of the Defendants’ insider trading in Taro
securities are described below. The remaining announcements are described in
chronological order.

November 17, 2005 Earnings Announcement
| 31. At 7:00 a.m. on November 17, 2005, Taro announced its eﬁmings for the
thifd quarter of 2005. They fell short of market anaiyst expectations, with Téro reporting
- third quarter sales of $72.5 million and net income of $2.1 million, or $0.07 per share,
47% lower than the-$4.0 million Taro reported during the third quarter rof 2004. This
information was material. |

32. A month earlier, on Octbber 10, 2005, Taro responded to inquiries from
" investors, analysts and reporting ageri_c-ies by publicly anﬁo_unt:iné that it would réléase its
‘quarterly eamings results in early November 2005. On October 17, Taro’s finance
department génerated the first draft of consolidated third quarter financial résdlts. On
November 8, Taro isshéd apress release announcing that it would not release third |
quarter earnings until Nd\fember 17, 2005. By virtue of his access to daily Sales Reports,
' _Zvi- knew that the company’s sales levels were low.vcompar'ed vﬁth »previ(v)us quarters, and
‘understood the impact fhat would have on Taro’s earnings.

33. ‘During the time preced_ing Taro’s éarnings announcement for the third
| quarter of 2005, Zvi communicated regulérly, directly orindirectly, with Amir, Qrén, and
Ayal; and provided them. with the material, nonpublic information he possessed |
concerning Taro’s qﬁarte‘rly results. Amir then tipped Nogé, and she traded Taro
secuﬁtiés or agreed to provide Amir access to her account to trade them. Amir passed the
tip to Heyman and Kim, and they each traded Taro securities. As a result of the

information Zvi supplied, Amir, Noga, Oren, Ayal, and Heyman liquidated bullish

14
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positions they had previously established in Taro stock or options, and established a
bearish strategy, using the knowledge that the price of Taro stock or options would
decline after release of Taro’s weak 2005 third quarter earnings. Defendants made trades

in the following brokerage accounts surrounding the November 17, 2005 earnings

announcement:
11/17/2005 Earnings _
Defendant Trade Date Buy/Sale Qty' | Description : Loss
Avoided/Profit
Aragon Partners’ Account
: S (50) | Nov 30 Puts
10/7/2005 I :
10/18/2005 | B 50 | Nov 30 Puts :
10/18/2005 | Loss avoidance $ 43,452.55
- 10/7/2005 | S (100) | Nov 25 Puts ‘
10/18/2005 | B 4 | Nov 25 Puts
10/18/2005 | B - 46 | Nov 25 Puts
10/18/2005 | B 36 | Nov 25 Puts
10/18/2005 | B - 14 | Nov 25 Puts
10/18/2005 | : Loss avoidance $ 80,465.20
10/24/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts '
10/24/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 200 | Nov 20 Puts
10/31/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts
11/9/2005 | S '(100) | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S (100) { Nov 20 Puts
11/17/12005 | S (100) | Nov 20 Puts
- MNM7/2005| S . (100) | Nov.20 Puts : .
11/17/2005 | S (100) | Nov20 Puts $ 115,154.38
10/24/2005 |} S (80) | Nov 20 Calls - -
- 10/24/2005 | S {200) | Nov 20 Calls
- 10/24/2005 | S (32) | Nov 20 Calls .
11/18/2005 | Expired -~ 312 | Nov 20 Calls $ 56,333.77 -
10/24/2005 { S (15) | Nov225Calls |- '
- 10/24/2005.1' S ' (200) | Nov 22.5 Calls
10/26/2005 | S (200) | Nov 22.5 Calls
10/27/2005 | S (200) | Nov 22.5 Calis
11/18/2005 | Expired 615 | Nov 22.5 Calls $ 35,397.43
10/24/2005 | S (60) | Dec 20 Calls
10/24/2005 { S (200) | Dec 20 Calls
10/24/2005 | S . (76) | Dec 20 Calls
10/24/2005 | S (64) | Dec 20 Calls

The quantities in parentheses are sales.
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12/16/2005 | Expired 400 | Dec 20 Calls $ 84,336.64
© 10/26/2005 § S (159) { Jan 22.5 Calls
1/20/2006 | Expired 189 | Jan 22.5 Calls $ 21,334.90
10/26/2005 | S (46) | Jan 25 Calis
1/20/2006 | Expired 46 | Jan 25 Calls $2,945.42
: Total Profit: $ 439,420.29
Aragon:
Noga’s Account
10/7/2005 | S - (50) | Nov 25 Puts
10/18/2005 | B 42 | Nov 25 Puts
.10/18/2005 | B 8 | Nov 25 Puts . . :
10/18/2005 Loss avoidance $ 41,209.51
10/24/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts : o
- 10/24/2005 | B 44 | Nov 20 Puts -
10/24/2005 | B 56 | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S (100) | Nov20 Puts : .
11/17/2005 | S (100) | Nov 20 Puts - $ 49,362.49
Total Profit $ 90,572.00
Noga:
Oren’s Account
9/19/2005 | S (30} | Jan 22.5 Puts
10/21/2005 | B 5 [ Jan 22.5 Puts
10/21/2005 { B 25 | Jan 22.5 Puts
10/21/2005 Loss avoidance_ | $17,716.51
10/25/2005 { S | (3,200) | TARO shares - _
10/25/2005 _ Loss avoidance $ 22,066.16 |
10/31/2005 | S (20) | Nov 25 Calls : ,
11/18/2005 | Expired- 20 | Nov 25 Calls $ 973.96
© 11/2/2005 | S (15) | Dec 25 Calls B
12/16/2005 | Expired 15 | Dec 25 Calls - $1,327.70
11/7/12005 | B 15 | Nov 22.5 Puts .
11/9/2005 { S {15) | Nov 22.5 Puts - $1,380.40
' Total Profit - $43,464.73 |
Oren: -
Ayal’'s Account - .
.10/10/2005 | S (15) | Nov 25 Puts
10/20/2005 | B 15 | Nov 25 Puts
10/20/2005 | Loss avoidance $11,602.76
11/7/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts , -
11/11/2005 | S (100} { Nov 20 Puts - $4,827.68
Total Profit | $ 16,430.44
-~ Ayal:
Heyman’s Account
5/23/2005 | B 600 | TARO Stock
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6/13/2005 | S (20) | Jul 35 Puts
6/14/2005 | S (30) | Jul 35 Puts
7/13/2005 | B 4,200 | TARO stock
7/18/2005 | B 800 | TARO stock
10/19/2005 | S (5,600) | TARO stock
10/19/2005 Loss avoidance $ 47,079.67
10/24/2005 | B 66 | Nov 20 Puts ‘
10/24/2005 | B 15 { Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 19 | Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 50 | Nov 20 Puts
11/7/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts .
11/17/2005 | S (100) { Nov 20 Puts $ 27,826.72
11/17/2005 | S (150) | Nov 20 Puts $ 53,368.46
:  Total Profit $ 128,274.85
Heyman: _
Heyman & Son’s Account
6/14/2005 | S *(20) | Jul 35 Puts
7/13/2005 | B 2,000 | TARO stock
- 10/19/2005°{ S (2,000) | TARO stock ‘
10/19/2005 ' Loss ’ $ 16,847.10
‘ Avoidance ' :
10/24/2005 | B 50 { Nov 20 Puts :
11/17/2005 | S (50} | Nov 20 Puts $ 11,902.39
’ Total Profit $ 28,749.49
" Heyman & |
‘Son:
Young Kim’s Account
| 11/3/2005 | B 10 | Nov 20 Puts
11/3/2005 | B 5] Nov 20 Puts . o
 11117/2005 | S /(15) | Nov 20 Puts- $4,010.32
: - Total Profit $ 750,922.12
" 111712005 ’ o
earnings:
34.  Trading concerning Taro’s November 17, 2005 earnings announcement
resulted in more than $750,000 in total profits and losses avoided.
July 29, 2004 Earnings Announcement
35. On July 29, 2004 at 7:00 a.m., Taro released its second quarter earnings

results, reporting that the quarter was the worst quarter, from a sales perspective, that

Taro had ever reported. Taro reported a $17.6 million operating loss, compared with

ptd
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operating profit of $18 million for the second quarter of 2003. Quarterly sales were
$49.1 million compared with $74.8 million in the second quartef of 2003 and earnings
per share were $0.08, compared with $0.97 for the second quarter of 2003. This
information was material.

36. On June 28; 2004,»Taro’s CFO sent a memorandum to all Ldepa,rtmvent
heads, reciuesﬁng an immediate review of all projects, a.headcou'nt for the balance of
2004, and proposals to reduce costs by 10%. The same day, Zvi sent an email to Taro
Israel employees ordering a feduction in mariufacturiné to avoid a Build—up of ins}entory.

37. On july 6, 2004, Zvi received an email from Ta_rofs Finance Department
explaining that Taro had to start making plans to dramstically reduce invéntory levels
immediately besause inventory growth was drarhatically affecting Taro’s cash flow.

. 38. By virtﬁe of his position, Zvi had.,access to material, nonpublic-
information, including daily Sales Reports, between'February and June 2004 that showed |
the dismal quarter Taro was ekpeﬁencing.- On June 16,> 2004, Zvi attfanded. a Sal-‘es. & |
Operations meeting to discuss the quérfef’s actual sales and its negati»\;e performance
relative to the sales forecast. Cn June 23, Zvi attended a Sales & Opératiqhs meeting
where the sales outlook for the ciuarter wss discussed. By ¥ ;ine 23, Zvi knew that ihe
‘quarter’s actual sales Qould not meét the‘ fofecast. From Jupe 23 to the en-d. of the quarter
on 'J'une 30, Zvi was aware that products shipped fro_rh the warehouse fell shoﬁ of _
projections and the extest of the shortfall of actual sales versus forecasted sales. The
sales shortfall caused 'Ta;s to alter its production plans ts avoid a buildup of inventory
and to match production levels to reduced sales forecasts. Taro Canada’s Director of

Materials Management discussed the sudden sales shortfall and associated production
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plan changes with Zvi, and as the end of the quarter approached, she, ZVi, and others at

Taro made changes to the production plans in response to the falling sales.

39.

During the period preceding Taro’s July 29, 2004 earnings

announcement, Zvi traded on the material, nonpublic information, and communicated the

nonpublic information relating to the sales shortfall directly or indirectly to Amir, who

traded on the material, nonpublic information, and tipped Heyman and Bahram with the

information, each of whom also traded on the information. Amir also tipped Noga, and -

she traded Taro securities or agreed to provide Amir access to her account to trade them.

Defendants made trades in the following accounts surrounding the July 29, 2004 earnings

announcement:

7/29/2004 Earnings - _

. S , ; o Loss |
Defendant Trade Date BuySale Qty | Description Avoided/Profit
Aragon Partners’ Account

6/25/2004 | B 20 | Aug 45 Puts
6/25/2004 | B 20 | Aug 40 Puts
6/25/2004 | B- 21 | Aug 40 Puts
' 6/28/2004 | B 39 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 50| Oct 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B "~ - 50 j Aug 40 Puts
© 7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock
7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock
7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock
7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock -
8/2/2004 | S (2,000) | TARO stock
8/2/2004 | S (13,000) | TARO stock -
8/2/2004 1 S (5,000) | TARO stock $363,113.59:
6/29/2004 | S (100) | Aug4o calls
6/30/2004 | S (100) | Aug 40 Calls
711/2004 | S (200) | Aug 40 Calls
7/1/2004 | S (23) | Aug 40 Calls
7/1/2004 | S (30)
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8/20/2004 | Expired 453 | Aug 40 Calls $ 261,934.58
7/6/2004 | S (10) | Oct 40 Calls
7/6/2004 | S (90) | Oct 40 Calls
7/7/2004 | S (10) | Oct 40 Calls
7/7/2004 | S (40) | Oct 40 Calls
7/8/2004 | S - (150) | Oct 40 Calls
7/8/2004 | S (100) | Oct 40 Calls
7/8/2004 | S (50) | Oct40 Calls
10/15/2004 | Expired 450 | Oct 40 Calls $ 216,370.23
7/6/2004 | S (100) | Jan 40 Calls
7{7/2004| S (50) | Jan 40 Calls
7/7/2004 | S (50) | Jan 40 Calls
11/26/2004 | B 200 | Jan 40 Calls $ 121,487.18
: Total Profit
Aragon: $ 962,905.58 |
Noga’s Account v
C 7/6/2004 | B 20 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B - 10 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 20 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 30 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 10 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 30 | Aug 40 Puts.
7/29/2004 | S (20) | Aug 40 Puts
'7/29/2004 | S ~(20) | Aug 40 Puts
7/29/2004 | S " (20) { Aug 40 Puts
7/29/2004 | S (60) | Aug 40 Puts $ 214,966.34
Zvi’s Account - ‘ .
- 7/20/2004 [ S , (30) | Sep 25 Calis
9/17/2004 | Expired 30 | Sep 25 Calls $ 31,143.27°
6/28/2004 'S 10,000 | TARO stock : s
B Loss Avoidance ~ $238,698.76
Total Profit Zvi $ 269,842.03
Heyman’s Account
7/6/2004 | S 1(100) | TARO stock
7/6/2004 Loss avoidance $ 1,904.90
7/6/2004 | B 25 | Aug 40 Puts '
7/29/2004 | S (10) | Aug 40.Puts
7/29/2004 | S (15) | Aug 40 Puts '$ 40,065.93
7/14/2004 | B 40 | Aug 35 Puts
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7/29/2004 |-S (10) | Aug 35 Puts .
7/29/2004 | S (30) | Aug 35 Puts $ 41,845.83
Total Profit
Heyman: $ 83,816.66
Bahram’s Account
7M12/2004 | S (10) | Aug 35 Calls
7/12/2004 | S (270) | Aug 35 Calis
7/15/2004 | S (45) | Aug 35 Calls
7/23/2004 | S - (50) | Aug 35 Calls _
8/20/2004 | Expired . 375 | Aug 35 Calls $ 180,450.26
7119/2004 1S (100) | Aug 30 Calls '
8/20/2004 | Expired - 100 | Aug 30 Calis $ 62,837.53
Total Profit S _
Bahram: $ 243,287.79
Total Profit | :
. 712912004 : S
earnings:- $1,774,818.40
40. In appreciation for the Taro tips Amir gave him concerning the July 29,

2004 earnings announcement, Heyman paid for a plasma televisidn that Amir bought on

August 29, 2004 for $6,645.

41. In _bo_nriection with the July 29, 2004 earnings announcément, Amir

received approximately $66,000 from Bahram as a kickback of apprinxﬁately 25% of the

profits Bahram made on the ariri'ounc_ément. ,'

42. - Trading concerning the July 29, 2004 earnings release resulted in more

than $ 1,700,000 in profits and losses avoided.

May 29, 2001 Announcement of FDA Approval of CB Cream

43, Onorabout May 29, 2001, Taro announced that the-FDA had approved—

" its application to distribute a new generic drug, Clotrimazole/Betamethasone

Dipropionate Cream USP (“CB Cream”). This information was material.
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44. By vi.rtueof his responsibility for coordinating production and shipment

“of new product and because of his involvement in the PLC meetings, Zvi-knew Taro’s
estimates of when it could expect FDA approval for CB Crearrl. From September
through November 2000, Zvi attended PLC meetings where the group discussed the
status of CB Cream production ana progress in the FDA approval process. Zvi was in
charge of the production plan for CB Cream, and was responsible for ensuring that Taro

' rrranufactllred and packaged sufﬁoient stocks of Cﬁ Cream so that it was ready to ship to

drstnbutors and customers unmedrately upon FDA approval In March 2001 Zv1

participated in PLC meetings and was aware that Taro expected FDA approval of CB

Cream some timie in April 2001. By May 2, 2001, Zvi was .reoelvmg da1_ly reports from

Taro’s home offices in Israel concem‘ing CB érear'rr productiorl_ in ariticipation ot an -

expected approval from the FDA By May'9, 2001, Tatro'employees invotved in the

- product launch of CB Cream knew that FDA .approval would most likely come by the
first week of June 200.1 On. Mzty 9, 2001, Taro learned in a conference call with the
FDA that CB Cream was 1n “first genenc drug review,” which usually extends the FDA

: approval process by three to four weeks Taro s Chauman and Vlce Charrman
communicated the FDA schedule to the PLC. Also on May 9, 2001 Zv1 assisted Taro’s
Dtrector of Regulatory.Affairs with preparing a response to FDA requests by translatmg
documents written in Hebrew concemmg productlon of CB Cream. |

| 45. On May 29, 2001 at 2: 54 p m., Taro recelved a fax from the FDA

notifying it of the FDA’s approyal of CB Cream. Taro issued 'a_ press release at 5:26 p.m.
the same day, announcing th‘e FDA approvéi. Taro was the ﬁrst generic manufacturer to

enter the market with the product.
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46.

Throughout the approval process for CB Cream, Zvi communicated

regularly, directly or indirectly, with Amir and Ayal, providing them with the material, -

nonpublic information he possessed concerning the FDA approval for CB Cream, and

both Amir and Ayal traded options in advance of the announcement. The Defendants

made trades in the following accounts surrounding the May 29, 2001 announcement of

FDA Approval of CB Cream: -
6/29/2001 | FDA approval for CB Cream
Defendant Trade Date Buy/Sale | Qty Description Profit
Amir’s Account »
' 5/17/2001 { B 100 | Jun 60 Calls
5/17/2001 | B 45 | Jun 60 Calls
5/18/2001 | B 55 | Jun 60 Calls
5/29/2001 | B 5 | Jun 60 Calls
-6/1/2001 | S ~(50) | Jun 60 Calls -
6/1/2001 | S (30) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S. (30) { Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calis
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls -
6/1/2001 | S ' (15) | Jun 60 Calls $ 96,623.96
5/23/2001 | B. 30 | Jul 65 Calls
5/23/2001 | B .20 | Jul 65 Calls C .
6/1/2001 | S (50) | Jul 65 Calls $22,173.91
. ' . : Total Profit . i
Amir: $118,797.87
‘Ayal’s Account - o
T 5/22/2001 | B 1 | Jun 60 Call
5/22/2001 | B -2 | Jun 60 Calls
5/22/2001 | B 2 | Jun 60 Calls -
5/22/2001 | B ‘2 | Jun 60 Calls
5/25/2001 | B 1 | Jun 60 Call
5/30/2001 | S (2) | Jun 60 Calls
5/30/2001 | S (3) | Jun 60 Calls .
5/30/2001 | S (3) | Jun 60 Calls $2,536.91
‘ - Total Profit . '
5/29/01 FDA
approval of CB
Cream: $ 121,334.78
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47. Trading concerning the May 29, 2001 announcement of FDA approval

of CB Cream resulted in more than $12‘1'.,OOO in profits. |
July 19, 2001 Earnings Annouhcement

48. On July 19, 2001, Taro annbunced that earnings for the second quarter
of 2001 were a record for the company. Taro reported a 49% improvement of sales from
the same quarter a year earlier, énd net income of $6.1 million, or $0.48 per share. This
information was méferial. | |

49. By virtue of his'p_osition at Taro, his par_ticipation in Daily Meetings and
his access to ‘d_aily Sales Reports, Zvi kneW. thatTaro"s second quarter‘2001> earnings
- would be strong. Aﬁer the launch of CBT_C-ream on May 29, 2001, Zvi Alcnew‘t_hat sales |
were strong at Tar‘o_, and o.n.or about May 31, 2001, Zvi received an email from his |
supervisor sfating that Taro expected fo ship $3 ﬁﬁllion of CB Cream with'm.the first

twenty four hours followmg the product launch. Zv1 knew that only one week after its

i launch Taro had sold $40 mﬂhon worth of CB Cream On or about July 3, 2001, Zvi

received th¢ final s_ales data for the second quarter, Whjch showed that Taro had $69.2
._millljon_ in sales fo_r fhe quarter, exceéding 1ts quarterly fore'éé_xSt:By 185%.
1_50. '_During' -fhis time, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly,
with Amir and Oren, providing them ‘with -the material, nonp'ubiic information he .
possessed‘r.egarding the _impendingv eaﬁﬁngs release. Amir and Oren each t_raded options
“while in possession of mateﬁal, nonpublic iﬁformation that Zvi sﬁpplied.
51. Amir and Oren xﬁade the following profits resulting from tradipg with

material nonpublic information surro_uhding the July 19, 2001 earnings announcement:
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Defendant Profit
Amir $ 175,811
Efrat (trading by -
Amir) $ 18,848
Oren _ $37,042
Total Profit $ 231,701
52. Trading concerning the July 19, 2001 earnings announcement resulted in

more than $231,000 in profits.
October 18,2001 Earnings Aqnou_ncement
53. On Octobér 18, 2001 at approximately 7:02 g.tﬁ., Taro réportéd record
‘third quarter eamihgs. fof 2001. Taro reported» approximately $41.4 million iﬁ sales, an
increase of approximately 52% over the safne quarter a year earlier, and an increase in net
_' income of approximately 161% to $7:3 million, or $0.29 per share. This information was
material.
54. By virtue of his positiori at Taro, prior to its public announcemenf, Zvi
. knew that Taro’s third-quartér earnings in.2001 would be strong. Zvi’s participation in
Da_ily Meetinés at Taro, _aﬂd hjs constaht access to daily Sales Reports, géve Zvi material,
‘ nonpﬁblic informaﬁon abt)_ut Taro’s sales and eamih_gs for‘ the'record-breakirig third
'(vlu_alter of 2001. | | | |
| 55. During the time-preéeding Taro’s third quarter 2001 earnings
_ _az;lnouncement, Zvi communicated fegularly, directly or indirectly, with Amir and Oren,
progliding 'them v_vith the material, nonpﬁblic_ information he possessed about the
| impending earnings annov.incemevnt;'. With the material, nonpublic .information, Zvi, Amir,
“and Oren all traded dptions in Tz;ro for their own accounts, and/or accounts they
controlled or had access to in advance of Taro’s third quarter of 2001 earings

announcement.
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56. . Zvi, Amir and Oren made the following profits resulting from trading

while in possession of material nonpublic information surrounding the October 18, 2001

earnings announcement:

Defendant Profit

} 2vi $ 4,280
Amir $ 92,489
Efrat (trading _
by Amir) $ 45,266
QOren $ 46,860
Total Profit - $ 188,895

57. Trading concerning the earnings announcernent on October 18,2001 :

resulted in more than $188,000 in profits.

. November 26, 2002 Announcement of
- FDA Approval of Econazole Nitrate Cream, 1%

58 | On November 26, 2002, Taro an_nounced that the FDA had épprbved its |
_application for approval of Econazole Niﬁate Cream, 1% (“Econazole Cream”). This
information was material.

59. ‘By virtue of his poéition at Taro and because of his attendance at PLC
meetiﬁgs, Zvi kn_eW that Taro anticipated tﬁat it would be the first manufacturer to market -
generic Econazole Creaifn, ‘and was frequently updated as to when Taro éxpected FDA
af)pro'val. Zvi was involvf:d frdfn O_ctober 2001 to April 20_02 in preparing validation
: batches for the FDA, and was résp_on_sible for making the‘necessary production
preparations to Be aBle to ship product to fill orders-once final FDA approval was _
recei&eci.

60. By early August 2002, Zvi knew that FDA approval and product launch
were expected to occur during the fourth quarter 2002. After a meeting in. August or

September 2002, Taro’s Vice Chairman told Taro’s staff that the FDA would approve the
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application, and that Taro expected approval within the next few months. Zvi knew that
the PLC viewed Econazole Nitrate Cream as a profitable product with no generic
competition in the market. On Novémber 15, 2002, Zv1 attended a PLC meeting where
the group discussed the imminent FDA -approval for Econazole Nitrate Cream.
| 61. 'Dun'ﬁg this time, Zvi communicated regularly, direct.ly or indirectlsl,

‘with Amir, Oren and Ayal, prqviding them with the material, nonpublic information he
possessed regarding the FDA’s anticipated approval of Econazole Nitrate Cream. Each
of them tfaded dn thé information.

| 62.  Amir, _Orén and Ayal made the following profits resulting from trading
with méterial nonpti_blic information surrounding the announcement bf FDA approval of

Taro’s application to distribute-Econézolé Nitrate Cream:

Defendant Profit
Amir ' $16,484
Oren _$10,833
Ayal $5914 |
Total Profit $ 33,231
63. Trading surrounding the November 26, 2002 announcement resulted in

| morethénI $33,000 in 'p;oﬁts.
. February 20, 2003 Earnings Announcement
64. On}February 20, 2003, Taro émnqunced record results for both the fourth
quarter of 2002, and for the year ending December 31, 2002. Fourth quarter salés and
year-long sales each iucreased 43%, with annual net income inérgasing approximately

71% to $44,500,000, or approximately $1.52 per share. This information was material.
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65. By virtue of his position at Taro and his constant access to the daily
Sales Reports, Zvi knew about th‘e'increased sales levels at Taro, and knev.v that the
company’s income was dramatically increasing.

66. In early 2002, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, with
Amir, Ayal and Oren, and provided them with the material, nonpublic information he
possessed about the company’s earnings. Zvi, Amir, Ayal and Oren each traded .on the
information Zvi stole from Taro. Amir t'ipped his then-fiancée Noga, and she traded Taro-
securities or agreed to provide Amir access ‘to hef account to trade. them. - -

67. Zvi, Amir, Noga, Ayal and Oren made the fdllowing profits resulting
from trading with material nonpublic information surrounding the February 20, 2003

earnings announcement:

-.Defendant Profit
YA $ 3,322
Amir $ 4,409
{ Efrat (trading by
Amir) $ 4,414
Noga $ 511
Oren_ $6,217 |
Ayal ' - $17,604
Total Profits = $36,477
68. Trading surrounding the February 20, 2003 earnings announcement

resulted in more than $36,000 in proﬁts.
April 16, 2003 Earnings Annouﬁcement -
69.  On April 16, 2003, Taro announced recofd éémings for fﬁe first quarter
0£2003. Sales had increased 55% and net income incre:a'sed_42% to $0.47 per shate.

This information was material.
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70. By virtue of his position at Taro and his constant accesé to the daily
Sales Reports, Zvi knew that earnings would again be positive for Taro.

71. . Leading up to thé eanﬁngs announcement on April 16, 2003, Zvi
- communicated regula_riy, directly or indirectly, to Amir and Oren, providing them with
the n;ateriél, nonpublié'information he possessed concerning the impending earnings.
announcement. Oren thcp either traded Taro securities in his account or agreed to
- provide Amir access to his account so Anijr could do so.
72. ‘Oren made the following proﬁts-,. res'ulti.ng from trading with material

nonpublic informatidh surrounding the April 16, 2003 earnings ahnouncement:

Defendant Profit
Oren $20,869
73. Trading surrounding Taro’s April 16, 2003 earnings announcement

 resulted in more than $20,000 in profits.
| April 29, 2004 Earnings An.n‘ouncement.

74. On April 29, 2004, Taro .annoﬁnced its ear;)inQS'for the first quarter of
2004. Taro reported 1;hat eauﬁngé feil 21% in the first quarter compafed with the ﬂrét
quarter of 2003, with eatﬁings of $1 11 inillion, or $O.-37 pér share. The eaﬁings failed
to -fﬁeet analysts’ expeétationé o‘f $0.53 ber share. Thié mformafion was material.

775. By virtue of his pOSiﬁdn at Taro, and his constant access to the &aily :
- Sales Repoﬁs, Zvi kneW that sales during the first quarter of 2004 were disapporinting.
| By the middle of the first qu.;:lrter, Zvi knew that Téro’_s éxecﬁtive committee was
discussing the fact that gross sales were not meeting expectations. -

76. In the time leading up to the April 29, 2004 announcement, Zvi

communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, to Amir, providing him with the material,
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nonpublic information he possessed conceming the impending earnings announcement.
Amir then traded on the inforrﬁation. Aﬂer receiving the information from Zvi, Amir
tipped Heyman, who traded on the information. Zvi also traded on the information.

77. Zvi, Aragon Partners and Heyman made the following profits resulting
from trading with matédal nonpublic information surrounding the April 29, 2004 |

earnings announcement:

Defendant ’ Profit |
Zvi $3,243
Aragon Partners $2,060
Heyman B $107
Total Profit: $ 5,410
78. Trading surrounding Taro’s April 29, 2004 earnings announcement -

resulted in more than $5,4OO in proﬁté.
vAu’gust 20, 2004 Ann’ouncemenf of FDA Approval of Loratadine Syrup
79. On August 20, 2004, Taro annouﬁcgd that the FDA approved its
application to distribute Loratadine Syrup. This ;m_formation was material. -
. 80. Because of his involvement wifh the PLC, in or éboﬁf April 2004, Zvi
o knew gﬁat FDA appfoval of Loratadine Syrup was expé:cted:b.y August 2004."__ OnJ lﬂ}" 15,
Zvi attended a PLC meeting at which ﬁnéll FDA approval for Lorétadine Syrup was | 7
anticipated in September 2004. On August 12, the estim.ate. fc;r F DA approvél Was
moved back to Nbvember or December 2004. .Between August 12 an;i August 19, 2004,
Zvi learned that FDA approval had beeﬂ rﬁoved up to Aﬁgust and “.fasiir;nninen‘t.
81. Throughout the ﬁ‘mé leading up to the anhouncement of the FDA
approval of Loratadine Syrup, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, with

Amir and Oren, and provided them with the material, nonpublic information he possessed
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regarding Taro’s application for FDA approval of Loratadine Syrup. Amir then tipped
Noga, and she traded Taro securities or agreed to provide Amir access to her account to
trade them. Amir also tipped Heyman with the material, nonpublic information that Zvi
supplied. Aragon Partners, Amir, Oren, and Heyfnan each traded with the information
Zvi supplied. In addition to tipping others, Zvi traded ip Taro securities in his own
. account at Israeli Discount Bank while in possession of tﬁe maferial, non-pui)lic,
information.

82. Zvi, Aragon Partners,.N.dg‘a, Oren and Heyman made the following
profits resulting from trading with mate»rialinon'public information: surroundiﬁg the

announcement of FDA approval of Taro’s distribution of Loratadine Syrup:

Defendant _ Profit |
Zvi ' $ 37,800
Aragon Partners $ 46,184

- | Noga L $ 8,151
‘Oren ' $231
Heyman - - $1,663

| Total Profit: ©'$94,029 | -
83. Trading surrounding the announcement that the FDA had approved

~ Taro’s Loratadine Syrup application resulted in more than $94,000 in proﬁts;

March 2, 2005 Announcement of FDA Approval
Of Miconazole Nitrate Vaginal Cream, 4%

84 - On March 2, 2005, Taro announced FDA approvai for i:-ts prddﬁct
Miconazole Nitrate Vaginal Cream, 4% (“'Miconazvo.le Cream”).  This inférmation‘ was
material. | | |

85. By viﬁue of his position, which ihcludéd cOordiﬁating production |
schedules for newly-FDA-approved products at Taro, and his participation in PLC

meetings, Zvi knew Taro’s estimates of when the FDA would approve the product. Ata
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meeting on January 13, 2005, Zvi was told that the FDA appréval was anticipated
shortly. At the January 27 and February 3 meetings, Zvi was toid that FDA approval was
expected in February. At the Feb.ruary 10 meet_ing, Zvi was told that the FDA’s review
was complete, and that the-application was circulating for the FDA officials’ signatures.’
Approximately one week later, at another PLC meeting, Zvi was told that approval by the
end of Febmafy,remained the best estimate.

56. N Throﬁghout the time leéding up to the FDA approval of Miconazole |
* Cream, Zvi communicated régulaﬂy, directly or indirectly, with Amir, Oren, and Ayal,
providing them with the material, nonpublic information he posseséed _'conceming Taro’s
application for FDA approvdl of Miconazole Cream. Each of them traded on the
infonnatipn. _'-Ami'r then tipped Noga, and she traded Taro securities or agreed to provide
Amir acceés to her accouﬁt to trade them. Amir also tipped Heyman with the imvateri:lil,
" nonpublic information Zvi had supplied and Heyman traded on thé .infonnation.

: 87. | Aragon Partners, Aniir, Noga, Oren,. Ayal and Heyman made the
| foilowing préﬁts resﬁiting from trading with material nonpublié information surrounding
 the announcement of FDA approval of Taro’s épplication to distribute Mic;ma_zole-

~ Cream:

Defendant - Profit
Aragon ' ,
Partners $276,275 |-
Noga , $ 25,794
Oren $11,637 |
Ayal  $2655
Heyman _ $24213]
Total Profit $340,574 |
88. Trading surrounding the March 2, 2005 announcement resulted in more
than $340,000 in profits.
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April 14, 2005 Announcement of FDA
Approval of Ciclopirox Olamine Cream

89. On April 14, 2005, Taro announced that the FDA had approved its
applisation to distribute Ciclopirox_ Olamine Creum. This information was material.

90. By virtue of his position at Taro as the person responsible for
coordinating productiou in anticipation 6f the launch of new products, his participation in
PLC meetings, and his participation in at least fourr additional rusetings_at which the
prdgress of the FDA rev-iewrvo"f, Ciclopirox Olamine Cream was discussed, Zvi tracked the -
FbA appfoval process for Ciclopirox- Olamine Cream, qnd organized its production in

_anticipation of FDA approval. On March 31, at a PLC meeting, Zvi le_a_med that FDA
‘ appfoval was expscted during the we_ek of April 15. |

91. 'Th‘roughout the time prededing Taro"s April 14 2005 announcement,
'Zv1 communicated regularly, directly or 1nd1rectly, with Amir and Oren, and prov1ded
them with material, nonpubhc information concerning Taro s appllcatlon for FDA
approval of Clcloplrox Olamme Cream. Am1r and Oren traded onbthe mformat10n Am1r
then tlpped Noga, aud she traded Taro securities or agreed to pr0v1de_Amjr _dCcess to her
account to trudé .them.. Amir also tipped _Héyman, who traded on the iufonna:tiun.

92.  Inaddition to tippiué others, Zvi traded in Ta_:'o securitics in hisown
account at Israéli Discbunt Bank while in possession uf the matsrial, uou-pubiic
information. . | | |

: .93. Aragon Partnérs, Zvi, Amir, Noga,‘ _Oren~and Heym'au made the
following profits resulting from trading uvith material nonuublid informaﬁon surrounding
- the announcement of FDA approvdl of Taro’s application to distn'buts Ciclopirox

Olamine Cream:
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Defendant Profit
Aragon Partners $ 190,224
Noga - $99,718
Oren' , $ 371
Heyman & Son $2667 |
Total Profit $ 292,983
94. Trading surrounding the April 14, 2005 announcement resulted in more -

than $292,000 in profits.
April 26, 2005 Earnings Announcement
95 . On Apﬁl 26, 2005, Taro announced its first quarter earrrings for 2005.
TarO’s earnings were doWn compared with the first quarter of 2004. Taro reported that
: proﬁts declined 55%, compared to the first quarter of 2004, to $5 million, or $0.17 per
share .- Sales for the first quarter fell 6. 6% to $78 5 rmlhon compared with $84 | mllhon
“for the first quarter 2004. Analysts expected earnings per share to be $0.21. This
information was material_. - |
9. By Virtue of his positlon at Taro and beeause of ms constant access to
the daily Sales Reports, among other things, Zvi knew material,-nonpublic infonnation _
' concemmg ‘Taro’s quarterly earmngs prlor to 1ts announcement
o 97 . Durmg the time prror to the Apnl 26, 2005 announcement Zvi -
commumcated regularly, drrectly or mdlrectly, with Amir and Oren and prov1ded them
with materlal, nonpublic information concerning Taro s upcommg earnings release, Both:
of them traded on the infonnation. Amir tipped Heyman wi.th-the material, noenpublic
: inforrnatlon that Zvi had supplied, and he traded on the information.
| 98. Aragon Partners, Oren and Heyman made the fo_llow‘ing proﬁts.by
trading with material nonpublic information surrounding the April 26, 2005 earnings

announcement:
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Defendant Profit
Aragon Partners . $ 128,580
Oren $ 431
Heyman & Son $ 3473
Total Profit $ 132,484
99. Trading surrounding the “April 26, 2005 eamings announcement resulted

in more than $132,000 in profits.
B. The Scheme to Steal Information from Public Accounting Firms
100.- In addition to _trédes based oﬁ matériél, noﬁpﬁb_lic information frorﬁ
- Taro, Amir, Ayal, Heyman, and Kim nﬁsappropﬁated and traded én material, nonpublic

information concerning possible mergers of public companies from Heyman’s employer,

"~ E&Y and Ayal’s employer, PwC..

101. then. Héyman and Ayal misappropriatéd the informa’tibn, both E&Y
and PwC had extensive confidentiality policies that emphasized to employees the
impdrténce of maintaining the confidentiality of informatioﬁ obtained thrbugh their- Work
at E&Y and PwC. | |

Heyman’s ProjectAA Tip
| - 102. On the moming of April 28, 2005, Heymar'; was assigﬁed by E&Y toa )
'&ue d_iligénce ﬁr.oject With the co_de; name “Project AA” fof.a public (éom‘pany client |
(“Company A”5, which was considering acqui_n'ng another public bcompany .(“C"ompany
' "B’.’).' Heyman’s supervisdrs assignéd him the task-of reviewing Corhpany B’s ﬁnancial
data to determine whether it was a suitable merger candidate_ with Company A. |
Heyman’s supervisors also iﬂstmcted him that the inforrh,ation pertaining to the poténtial

merger was confidential.
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103. On April 28, the day Heyman was assigned to Project i\A, at 12:24 p.m.,
Amir called Heyman’s cell phone. During the call, Heyman ptovided Amir with the
material, nonpublic information concerning the contemplated Imerger. Approximately six
minutes after the phone call ended, Amir began buying securities of Company B in
 Aragon Partners’ a‘c_coimt. | | | |
7 104. The next day, on April 29, Heyman’s supervisoi" forwarded Heyman an
emall from the engagement partner, whlch re—emphasmed the confidentiality bf client
'} information regarding Proj ect AA and he remmded Heyman that Pro;ect AA wasa
conﬁdent1a1 project. | |
©105. In early May 2005, Amir tipped Kim w_ith the confidential information
he ilad received 'fr‘omr Heyman conceming the companieé inyolved in Project AA. On
May 5 and 6, K1m bought call options for Company B..
- 106 The merger ant1c1pated in Project AA did not OCCUr.
» o Ayal’s P_i'oject Victor Tip |
107. In April 2005, Ayal transferred from PwC’s Audit_' SerViees Gronp to the
Traneaction -ServiCes _Cironp, a group at PwC tliat provid_es analytical SelfViQ:cS to PwC ‘
.é'lients- considering mergers or »Other" transactions. In 'conneetion yv_ith his,tr'ansfer, Ayal
| was required to attend a s_pecial iprese_ntation abouttlie importance of maintaining the
conﬁdentiality of the material, nonpublic infonnation_ to Wthh Transaction Serviees had -~
aece'ss. This training reitera'ted PwC’s general policies of which Ayal was alicady aware;
.but- foCuSed on the special issues pr_eSented by work witli the Transactional Services
Group. Part of the presentation inclnded a general recitation of the facts involved in SEC
v. Drescher, No. 99 Civ. 1418 (SAS), 1999 WL 946864 (S.D.N.Y. 1999), in which a

former PwC manager, who disclosed material, nonpublic information about a merger he
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was working on to a friend, was found rockless and therefore liable under Section 10(b)
and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange Act. The PwC partner who gave the presentation
emphasized the importance of conﬁdent‘iality and cautioned the audience, including Ayal,
to take extensive measures to maintain the iconﬁdentiality of information that the
Transaction Services Group learned during the course of its work.
108. In laio May 2005, Ayal started working on a possible merger code-
named “Projcct Yictor..’ ’ Ayal’é'suporvisors told him.that Project- Victor involved two
- 'pvublicly traded cornpanies, and that PwC’s client waé the target compony ("‘Company
C”): Ayal’s supervisors assigned him to the task of reviewing financial statements of the
acQuir,ing company (“Company D”) as part of the due diligence work related to the
. transaction. Ayal’s supervisors further instructed him that the infonnation pertaining to
the transaction was cOnﬁdontial.
109. | During the last week of May, before leaving for the Memorial Day
' holiday; Ayal reviowe.d audit files of Company D at the offices of E&Y. ﬁy the end of
the Memorial Dny holiday weekend, Ayal communicated material? nonpublic information
to Amlr oOnceming.;the p;op_osed merger. On the first trading day following the
i'Me_morial Day'holiday,.May 31, 2005, betweon 9:35 am. and 12:44 p.tn., Amir sold
Company C put options in Aragon Pnrmfzrs’-brokerage account. The follov)ing morning,
" Amir sold additional Company C put options. Ad_di'tionally, Amir tipped Kim about
Project Victor, and on June 1 nnd 27, Kim bonght Company C June call options based on
-~ the tip from Am1r : | |
110.  On Friday June 3, at approximately lunch tirne, senior management at
Company C, PwC’s Project Victor client, called PwC to inform them that the deal had

been indefinitely postponed.
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111. On June 3, immediately after learning the news at lunch, another
member of the PwC Project Victor team called Ayal and told him that the deal was off.
Shortly thereafter, Ayal convcyed this material, nonpublic information to Amir, and at |
.approximately 1:57 p.m. on June 3, Amir liquidated his positions.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

112. By virtueof the foregoing, and as set forth below, Defendants Arégon Partners,
. Aragon .Capital, Zvi, Amir, Ofen, Ayal, Noga, Heyman, Bahram, Kim, aﬁd Heyma_n & Son, m
coﬁpection with the p_urchase of sélle of securities, have: (aj employed devices, schgmes or
artifices to deﬁaud; (b) made untrué statements of material facts and omitted to state material
facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumétahces under which
they were‘-ma-de, tiot misleading; and (c) engaged in acts‘,’practices and coﬁ:ses of business which
would oﬁer_ate asa fraud orl deceit upon purchasers, prospective purchaéers, and other persons.

' 1i3. Defendants Aragon Parﬁlers, Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Noga,
Heyman, 'Bahram, Kim, and Heyman & Son, engaged in the conduct described above kﬁowingly
or with recklessness. |

~ 114..  Byreason of the foregqing, Défendé.nts Aragqn _Pértr_lers, Aragonb Capital,.. Zvi, |
Airlir,-Oren; Ayél, Noga, ﬁeyxnan, Bahrafn,-Kim, and Heyman & Son,_ violated, and ﬁnless
- -eﬁjoinéd, will continue to violate Sectidn 10(b) of t_he‘Exchangé Act[15 US.C. §'78j(b)] and
Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]. |

115. | By virtué of the foregoing, and és set forth below, Defendants Aragbn Partners,
Afagoﬁ Capital,'Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Noga; Heyman, Bahram, and Heyman & Son, In |
connection with the offér or sale of securities, have: (a) employed deviées, schemes or artifices
to defraud; (b) obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of matéﬁal fact or

omissions to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the
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circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in transactions,
practices and courses of business which would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

116. Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, No ga,'
Heyman, Bahram, and Heyman & Son, engaged in the conduct described above knowingly or
with recklessness. | |

117. By reason of the__foregoing, Defendants Aragon Partneré, Aragon Capital, Zvi,
Amir, Oren, Ayal, Noga, Heyman, Bahram, nnd Heyman & Son, violated, 'and unless enjoined,
‘will continue to violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

COUNT 1 |
(Tradmg in Taro Securities in Violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 thereunder as to Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Zvi,
Amlr,Orcn, Ayal, Noga, Heyman, Bahram, Kim, and Heyman & VSon)
118. Paragraphs 1 through 117 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.
119. Prior to each of the public announcements of FDA approval of Taro’s
_apnlication to distlioute new drugs referred to herein -- specifically, the announcements relating
- to FDA approval of CB Cream Econazole Cream, Loratadine Syrup, Miconazole Cream, and
- Ciclopirox Olamme Cream (the “F DA Announcements”) -- mformatlon relatlng to the FDA
approv.valland -T aro’s estimates of when it would occur (the “FDA Approval Inforr_natlon ’) was }
-material,_ nonj)ublic'infonnation. In addition, the FDA Approval Information wes _considered»
confidential by Taro, and was intended solely for internal corporate use.
_ 120. Prior to each of the public announcements of Taro’s quarterly -earnings referred

to herein — specifically, the announcements on J uly 19, 2001; October 18, 2001; February 23,
2003; Ap.ril 16, 2003; April v29, 2004; July 29, 2004; April 26, 2005; and November 17, 2005
(the “Earnings Announcements”) — information relating to Taro’s quarterly performance,

including information relating to sales, inventory, and production during the quarter (the
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“Financial Information”), was material, nonpublic information. The Financial Information also
was considered confidential by Taro, and was intended solely for internal corporéte use.

121. Zvi leared of the FDA Approval Information and the Financial Informatioﬁ in
the course of his employment at Taro. Zvi knew, or was reckless in not knowing, the fact that he
owed Taro a fiduciary duty to maintain such information in confidence until it Was publicly
disseminated.

‘122. In_b.r_each‘ of a ﬁduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or qonﬁdénce owed
to Taro, Zvi misappropriated the materiai, nonpublic FDA Appfoval Information aﬁd Financial

| Information by communicating this informétion, directly or indirectly, to Amir, Ay'al, Noga and

“Oren, while expecting to beheﬁt from his disclosure. Amir, Ayal, Noga and Oren knew, or were
reckless in not knowing, thag t_hé FDA Approval Information and Financiai Iﬁf(xmaition they
learned about Taro from Zvi was material and nonpublic, and had been misappfdpﬁated and/or
disélbsed to them m violation of a ﬁduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or conﬁdence, , |
and that they coﬁld ﬂot purchase or sell any Taro s¢curities or tip others so that they could
purchase or sell any Taro securities while possessing such vin.formatio'n.

123. Notwithstanding their respective o'bligations, _Zvi, Amir, Ayal, Noga and Oren
agreed that Zvi, Anlir, Ayal, Noga and Qren would trade in Taro Secqn'ties. As described aboVe_
and in connection with this ag'reemént, Zvi, Amir, Ayal, Noga and Oren traded in Taro. securities
as described above while in possession of this misapp_ropriated, material, nonpﬁblic infonnafion.

124. Each of the tradg:s executed prior to the announcements by Zvi, Amif, Ayal,
Noga and Oren described above constituted a separate direct or indirect‘\}iolation of Section

10(b) of the Exchange Act {15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder {17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-

51.
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125.  Also in violation of his obligations, Amir tipped Heyman with mat¢rial, nonpublic
information about Taro securities while expecting to benefit from the disclosure.- Heyman traded
on Amir’s tip and knew, or was réckless in not knowing, fhat the Financial Ihfonnation relating
to the July 29, 2004; November 17, 2005; and April 26, 2005 earnings announcements; and the
FDA Approval Information relating to the distribution of Miconazole Cre@; Ciclopirox |
Olarﬁinc Cream; and Loratadine Syrup that he learned about Taro was material and nonpublic;
and had been misappropriated and/o_r disclosed to him in violation of a ﬁdﬁciary duty or simiiar
relationship of trust or cohﬁdchce; and that he couid not purchase or sell any Taro sécuﬁties
while possessing such inform;cltion. |

126. Eacﬁ of the trades executed prior to the announcements by Heyman> constituted
a separate ciircct or indirect violatiqn"of Section lb(b) of fhe Exchange Act' [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)]
and Rule 10b-5 thereun‘der[l? C.F.R. § 240.10b—5].

127. Also in violation of his obligations, Amir tfpped Bahram with material, nonpublic |
infonnation about Taro securities while expecting to ben(.eﬁt‘ from thé disclosure. Bahram traded
on vAmir_’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the Financial Information relating
to the July 29, 2004 earﬁings announcement that he learned abohf'l‘aro_v&as material and .
nonpubli-c,_ and had been misapproprated and/or disclosed-t6 th in violation of a ﬁduciary duty
or similar relationship Qf trust .or conﬁdence, and that he_céuld not pﬁrchase or sell any Taro » |
securities while possessing such information.

128. Eachof thé_ trades éxecufed prior to the annoﬁncements by Bahram -
described above constituted a sepafate direct or indirect violation of Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act [15 US.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunde; [17CFR.§ 240.1(5b-5].\ ‘

129. Also in violation of his obligations, Amir tipped Kim with material, nonpublic

information about Taro securities while expecting to benefit from the disclosure. Kim traded on
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Arhir’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that thé Financial Information relating to
tﬁe November 17, 2005 eamihgs announcements that he learned about Taro was material and
nonpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a ﬁduciary duty
or similar relationship of trust or confidence, and that he could not purcﬁase or sell any Taro
securities while possessing such information.

130.  Each of the trades executed pﬁor to the announcements by Kim described |
above constituted a separate direct or indirect violation of Séction 10(b) of the Exchange
Act {15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 therel_mder [17CFR.§ 24(_).105-5]. |

131.  Each of the Defendants is ﬁable_ for the disgorgement of iIl-gotten'proﬁts or losses
avoided that each realized throuéh any insider trading in Taro securities, and Zvi, Ainir, Noga,
Ofeﬂ, and Ayél are jointly and 'severa'lly liable for all the trading prbﬁts and losses avoided
‘through any insider trading in Taro securities.

_ COUNT 11 _ : :
(Trading in Taro Securities in Violation of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act as to
- Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir,_Ol_‘en, Ayal, Noga,
Heyman, Bahram, and Heyman & Son)

132. Paragraphs 1 through 131 afe reallcged and.incorporatéd -herein by refefence.

133. | * Prior to each of the FDA Announcements, the FDA Approval Information was
material, nonpublic information. In addition, the FDA Approval Informatidn was c,onside'red
confidential by Taro, and was intended solely for internal corporate uée. |

134.  Prior to each of the Earnings Announcements, the Financial Infbrmation was
material, nonpublici information. The Financial Information aiso was considered coﬁﬁdential by
Taro, and was intended golgly for internal corporate use. |

135. . Zvi learned of the FDA Approval Information and the Financial Information in

the course of his employment at Taro. Zvi knew, or was reckless in not knowing, the fact that he
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owed Taro a fiduciary duty to maintain such information in confidence until it was publicly

disseminated.

136. In breach of a fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or confidence owed

to Taro, Zvi misappropriated the material, nonpublic-FDA Approval Information and the

~ Financial Information, and communicated this information, directly or indirectly, to Amir, Ayal,

Noga and Oren, while expecting to benefit from his disclosure. Amir, Ayal, Noga anci Oren
knew, or were reckless 1n ne‘t knowing, that- the FDA Appr,oval Information and Financial
Inferrnation they learned aeout Taro from Zvi was mateﬁel and nenpublic, ahd had been ;
misappropriated and/or disclosed to them in violation ef a ﬁduciery duty or similar relatiohshjp

of trust or confidence, and that they could not offer or sell any Taro securities or tip others so that

vt'hey could offer or sell any Taro'rseclirities while possessing such information.

137. Notwithstanding their fespecti&e obligations, Zvi, Amir, Ayal, NOga and Oren
agreed that Zvi, Amir, Ayal, Noga and Oren would trade in Iare secun'ties.' As described above
and in connection with this. agreement, Zvi; Amir, Ayal, Noga and Oreh traded in ’i‘aro securities
as described above while in possession of this misappf_opriatéd, material, neni;ub_lic iﬁfor'_mat-ion‘.

7 138. | .Eaeh of the trades involving an offer or sale of Taro securities eXeeuted priof t?_) .
the announcements By Zvi, Amir (on béhaif of himself, Aragon Partners, Noga and/or Efrat), |

Ayal, No ga and Oren described above constituted a separate direct or indirect violation of

- Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [150S8.C § 77q(a)]

139. Also in violation of his obhgatlons Amir tipped Heyman w1th matenal nonpubllc |
infoﬁnation about Taro securities while exp_ecting to benefit frem the disclosure. Heyman traded
en Amir’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the Financial Iﬁfoﬁnation relating
to the July 29, 2004; November 17, 2005; and April 26, 2005 earnings announcements; and the

FDA Approval Information relating to the distribution of Mlconazole Cream Ciclopirox
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Olamine Cream; and Loratadine Syrup that he learned about Taro was material and nonpublic,
and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty or similar
relationship of trust or confidence, and that he could not offer or sell any Taro securities while
possessing such information.
140. Each ;)f the trades.inv‘olving an offer or salé of Taro securities executed prior to
| the announcements by Heyman described above constituted a separate direct or indirect violﬁtion
of Section 17(2) of the Securit.ies Aét [15 U,IS.C. § 77q(a)]. |
141. Als_o in viola-tion of his obligations, Amir tipped Bahram with material,bnonpubl.ic -
information about Taro securities while expecting to benefit from the disclosure. Bahram traded
on Amir’s tip and knew, (;r was repkless in not knowing,: that the Quarterly Performance
infOrmation relzifih_g to the fuly 29,_2004 earrﬁhgs axmouncerﬁént that he .learned about Taro was - -
material and -noﬁpﬁblic, and had rbeen rﬁisappropfiated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a
fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trust orvconﬁdrénqe,r and that he could not offer or-séll
any TarQ securities while poSsessihg_ such information. N
" 142.  Eachof _@e trades involving an offer or sale of Taro securities executed
prior to the announcemgnts_-by Bahram de'scribed_ above constiiu‘fed a séparate diréct or
indirect violation of Sectioﬁ 17(a);0f the Securiﬁes Act [15US8.C. § 77q(a)].
143. Each of the Defendaﬁté ié liable for the disgorgement of ill-z;gotten prqﬁts
or losSes_avoided that each realized tﬁough any insider trading in Taro securities, and
Zvi, Amir, Oren, Noga and Ayal are jointly and severally liable for all the frading profits

and losses avoided through any insider trading in Taro securities.
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COUNT III
(Trading in Other Securities in Violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule
10b-5 Thereunder as to Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Amir, Ayal, Kim,
and Heyman)
144. Paragraphs 1 through 143 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.
145.  Prior to any public announcement eoncenﬁog the companies involved in Project
AA, information concerning the possible transaction was material, nonpublic information. This
information waé alsovcon_side'red conﬁoential by E&Y, and was intended solely for.intem‘ai
corporate use on behalf of its clierrt, Company A. |
146. Heyman learned of the information concerning- the poseible merger of companies
irrvolved in Project AA in the coorse of his employment at E&Y. Heymarl further knew, or was
r_eck.less‘ in not 'qur(')wing', that he owed E&Y a fiduciary duty to maintain such infonnatiorr in |
confidence until it was publicly disserrrjnated, and that he owed Company A shoreholdcrs, a duty
to abstain from disclosing rhis information fo.r»‘the purpose of obtaining personal gain. |
147. In breach of these ﬁducrary duties or sinrilar,rel_ationships of trust or confidence
‘owed to E&Y and Company A shareholders, Heyman misappr_opriated material, nonplrblic
| infomreﬁon—abouf .t‘he p'os's'i_ble merger of Company A arld Company B, and, w_hile_in pos_s_ession
~ of this inforr’natioh, communicated this information, directly or indirectly, to Arrljr, While‘ i
~expecting to benefit from his disclosure. |
148.  Amir knew, or was reckless in n_ot knowing that the irrfonnatiorr he learned about
Project AA Wae material and norlpublic, and had Been nris-appropn'ated and/or disclosed to him"in.
violation of a ﬁduciary duiy or similar relationship of trust or conﬁdence, and that he couid not .
purchase or sell any Company A or Conrpany B securities or tip others so that they coulo

purchase or sell any Company A or Company B securities while possessing such information.
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149. Notwithstanding his obligations, Amir, on behalf of Aragon Partners, traded in
Company B securities while in possession of this misappropriated, material, nonpublic

information.

150. B;y the conduct described above, Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital,
Amir; and Heyman diféctly or iridirectl)‘/,,violated Section »10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 .U.S.C.
§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 fhereundep [17 C.FR. § 240.10b-5]. |
151. Notwithstandipg his opligations' to refrain from disclosing the material nonpublic
information, Amir tippéd Kim with ﬁateria’l_nonpﬁblic infpnnation concerning Compény A or
Company B sécurities while expecting to benefit from the disclosure. Kim traded on Amir’s tip
_ aﬁd knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the information he leamed' about Compr'a'ny A andi .
| _Cdmpahy B was material aﬁd nbnpublip, and had been misappropriatéd and/or disclos_ed. to him
in violation of a ﬁduciz;fy dﬁty or similér feiationship, of trﬁst or confidence, and that he could
not purchése or sell any Company. A or Company B-secuﬁties while possessing such
. information. ‘ |
152.  Notwithstanding his ob]igatioﬁs, as described above, Kim traded securities of
~ Company B while in posSessipn of _this misappropriated, material, nohpublic infonnétion.:
153. By the conduict desé_ribéd ab(.’)vc,. Defendant Kim directly or indirectly, violated
' Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78i(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thercunder [17 C.F.R. §
240.10b-5]. B | - | |
o -154.  Prior to any public announcement cdncerning the companies involved n Projept
»Vlictor, informatipn'cqnceming thé possible transaction was mateﬁal, nonpublic informatioh.
This information was also considered confidential by. PwC, and was intended solély for internal

corporate use on behalf of its client, Company C.
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155. Avyal learned of the information concerning the possible merger of companies
involved in Project Victor in the course of his emplnyment at PwC. Ayal further knew, or was
reckless in not knnwing that ne owed PwC a fiduciary duty to maintain such information in
confidence until it was publicly disseminated, and that he owed Company C’s shareholders a
duty to abstain from disclosing this informationl for the purpose of nbtaining personal gain.

156. Inbreach of these ﬁduciary duties or similar relationships of trust or conﬁdence |
owed to PwC and Company C shareholders, Ayali misappropriated material, nonpubli'c
infonnétion about the possible merger of Compnny C and Company D, and, while in possession
of this .inforr'nation, communicated this information, directly or indirecﬂy, to Amir, while
expecting to benefit from his disclosure.

157. . Amir knew, or was reckless bin not‘knowing that the infomiaﬁon he learned about
Project Victor was matérial nnd nonpublic, and hadvbeen misanpronriated and/pr discloséd to ..
him in violation of a fiduciary duty or §irnilar felatidnship of trust or confidence, and that he -
could not purchase or sell any Company C or Cnmpany D sécurities,nr tip othérs'so that they
could purchase or sell any Company C.or Compény D securities while posscssing such
information. ‘ | |
15 8 - Notwithstanding his obiigations, Amir, on béhélf of Aragnn Partners, ﬁadcd 1in ‘
Company C securities WMle in possession of fhis miéappropﬁ-ated, rnatérial, nonpublic . |
infonnation. ,‘ | | |

159. By the conduct described above, befend’ants Afago-n Partners, Aragon Capital,
Amir, anclle‘yal directly or i_ndiréctly, violated Section 10(b) nf fhe Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §
78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]. '

160. Notwithstanding his respective obligations, Amir tipped Kim with material

nonpublic information concerning Company C or Company D securities, while expecting to
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benefit from the disclosure. Kim traded on Amir’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing,
that the information he .lcamcd about Company C and Company D was material and nonpublic,
and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty or si.mila,r
relationship of truSt or confidence, and that he could not pnrchase or sell eny Company Cor
Company D securities while possessmg such information.
161. Notw1thstandmg his obhgatlons as described above, me traded securities. of
Company C while in possession of this rmsappropnated material, nonpubhc mfonnatlon
162. By the conduct described above, Defendant Kim dlrectly or indirectly, violated
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act[15US.C. § 78](b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17CFR.§
240. 10b—-5].
COUNT v
(Tradmg in Other Securltles in Violation of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act as to
Defendants Aragon Partncrs, Aragon_Capltal Amnr, Ayal, and Heyman)
163. Pdragraphe 1 through 162 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.
164. Prior to any public almonncement concerning the companies involved in Project
AA, 'infonnation. COnceming the possible transacti_on was material, nonpnblic in_fofmation. This
information was atso considered .conﬁdential 'By E&Y, and was int,ended eolely for internal
corporate use-on behalf of its client Company A. | |
165. Heyman learned of the 1nformat10n concemmg the pos51ble merger of compames
ﬁ mvolved mn Prolect AAin the course of his employment at E&Y Heyman further knew or was
: reC_kles_s in not knowlng, that he owed E&Y a fiduciary _duty.to maintain such 1nformat10n in
- confidence .until it was publicly disseminated, and that he_ owed Company A shareholders a duty
to abstain from -dieclosing this information t’or the purpose of obtaining personal gain.
166.  In breach of these fiduciary duties or similar relationships of trust or confidence

owed to E&Y and Company A shareholders, Heyman misappropriated material, nonpublic
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information about the possible merger of Company A and Company B, and, while in possession
of this information, communicated this information, _diréctly or indirectly, to Amir, whi_lé
expecting to benefit from his disclosure.
167.  Amir knew, or was reckless in not knowing that the information he learned about
Project AA was material and ﬁonpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in
violation of a ﬁdugiary duty or similar relatiéns_hip of trust or conﬁdencé, and that hé could not
offer of Sell any Company _A or Company B Sccuriti\es or tip» others so that they could offer or sell
‘any Company Aor ‘Compan_y' B securities while posse-ssing- such iﬁformation.
| 168. Notwithstanding his obiigations, Amir, on behalf of Aragon Partners, traded in
Company B- securitie_s while in possession of thié misappropriated, material, nonpublic '
-information. |
169. By the conduct descﬁbed above, for any tradiﬁg ihvolving the offer or sale of
Company A or Company B securities, Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Amir; and
‘ -Heﬁnén-directly or ,indirectly, ,\-/iolatedv Section 17(5) of _the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].
| 170. Priér to any public announcement concerniﬂg th¢ companies infmlv’ed n P;oj ect
Victor, ihfoﬁhation coﬁc;:ming the possible transaction was material, nonpublic infomlation.
: This information was aiSO cénsidered confidential by PWC, and was inteﬁded éolely for internal
* corporate use on behalf of itsvcl»ien't, Cbmpany C.r
171. Ayal learned of the information concerning the possible Ilrrlergefof companies
7' involvéd in Project Victof in the course of his emplloyment at PwC. Ayal ﬁirthef knew, or was
- reckless in not knoWin_g"that he oWed. PWC a fiduciary duty to maintain such infonﬁation n
confidence until it was pﬁblicly dissemihated, and that he owed Company C’s shareholders a

duty to abstain from disclosing this information for the purpose of obtaining personal gain.
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172.  In breach of these fiduciary duties or similar relationships of trust or confidence
owed to PwC and Company C shareholders, Ayal misappropriated material, nonpublic
information about the possible merger of Company C and Company D, gnd, while in possession
6f this information, communicated this information, directly or indirectly, to Amir, while
expecting to benefit from his disclosure.

173.  Amir knew, or was reckless in not knowing that the information he learned ‘about
Project Victor was material and nOnpublic, and had been misappropl_‘iatéd and/or disclosed to
him in vioiét_ion of a fiduciary dufy or similar relationship 6f trust or confidence, and that he
could not offer or sell any Company C or Company D securities or tip.others so that they could
offer or sell any Company C or Company D secuﬁties while possessing.such information.

174. NotWithstanding his q_bligatibns, Amir traded in Comnény C securities whilésin
possession of this misappropﬁated-, matenal, nonpublic information.

175. By tne conduct described ab0v¢, for any trading involving an offef nr sale of
Company C or Comnany D securities, Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Amir, and

Ayal directly or indir’e'cﬂ_y, violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

| | RELIEF SOUGHT
WHEREFORE, i:ne Commission reséebtﬁlliy requests that» this Conlt enter éjudgment:
Permanently feétfaining and §njoining each o_f the Defendants, their officers, agents,
servants, employees, and attorneys, an& those pefsons in ,nctive concett or participation with
them whb receive actual no_tice of thé injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each 6f '
| thern, from Violating Section IO(E) of the Exéhange Act, and Rule 10b-5 thereunder; |
IL.

Permanently restraining and enjoining Defendants, Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Zvi,
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Amir, Oren, Ayal, Noga, Heyman, Heyman & Son, and Bahram, their officers, agents, servants,
employees, and attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who
receive actual notice of the injunction by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, from
violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act;

| L

‘Orden'ng_the Defendants and Relief Dgféhdants to disgorge all profits and ill-gotten géins
';realized from all the unlawful trading set forth herein, plué prejudgment interest;. |

| | IV.

Ordering th.;dt Defendants Zvi, Amir, Ayal, ‘Noga and Oren be held jointly and severally
liable'for Defendants Arélgon Parfners, Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Noga, Heyman,
He_y?nan & Son, Kun and Bahram’s disgorg'ément.plus prejudgment interest and fqr Relief
Défcridﬁnté Efrat and Rivka’s disgorgement plus',prej;ldgment interest.

| V. |

Ordering the Defendants to pay civil monetary penalties pursuant to Section 21A and/or
Section21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act;

'Orden'ng'jthat Zvi be barred from serving as an officer or director of any pﬁbic company

pursuant to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act; and
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VIL

Granting such other relief as this Court may deem just and appropriate.

Dated: New York, New York
March 22, 2007

- SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE o
COMMISSION

Mark K. Schonfeld (MS-2798)

Regional Director

Attorney for Plaintiff

Northeast Regional Office

3 World Financial Center, Room 4300
New York, New York 10281

(212) 336-1020

Of Counsel:

Nancy A. Brown
Gwen Licardo
Jonathan M. Redwine
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APPENDIX A: Flow of Inside Information Among Defendants

Blue Arrows — Taro Inside Information
Red Arrows — PwC Merger Inside Information
Sibver Arvows — E&Y Merger Inside Information
Green Arrows — Money or Kickbacks

Black Arrow — Control over Aragon




